
Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
Minutes of Thursday June 12, 2014    1:00 pm 

Lincoln County Service Center, Room 156 
 

Members Present: Julie Allen, John Bailey, Loretta Baughan, Jeff Hetfeld, R. Wayne Plant & Greta Rusch 
Visitors: Diane Wessel; Land Services Administrator, Dan Bowers; Zoning Program Manager, June Winters; Zoning Program Assistant, 
Sarah Koss; Register of Deeds, Randy Scholz; Administrative Coordinator, Nancy Bergstrom; Corporation Counsel, Robert Lussow; 
County Board Chair and 22 others.        Breitenmoser was excused. 
 
 

1. Call Meeting to Order - Meeting was called to order by Chairman Bailey at 1:00 p.m.  
 
 

2. Tour sites in the Towns of Merrill & Scott that will be the subject of public hearings – at 1:00 p.m. the Committee Members, 
Wessel and Bowers left to tour the sites.    The Committee, Wessel & Bowers returned at 2:12 p.m. to reconvene the meeting. 

 
 

3. Approval of the May 8, 2014 Land Services Committee Minutes –   M/S Plant/Hetfeld to approve the May 8, 2014 LSC minutes.    
Motion carried all ayes.        

    
 

4. Public Comment –   Allen suggested that during the testimony be alternated proponent/opponent.   Bailey said that he would 
take it under advisement but today they will follow the previously used format. 
 
 

LAND SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

5. 2:00 p.m. Public Hearing – Public Hearing was called to order at 2:15 p.m.    Hearings were held on the items listed in the notice.    
Chairman    Bailey explained the rules of conduct for public hearings and introduced the Committee members & staff.  He called 
the first hearing.    

 
PETITION FOR REZONING 

 
1) A request Robyn and Nicolas Schertz to rezone approximately 6.61 acres from a Rural Residential 3 zoning district to a Rural 

Residential 5 zoning district to allow for an outdoor wood furnace and a storage building greater than 1,500 square feet.  
The property is located in the SE¼SE¼ of Section 24,T35N-R6E, in the Town of Bradley, with an address of W4980 Osero 
Lane.  The tax parcel number is 04.243506.016.002.02.01. 
 
Robyn Schertz was present to explain the request.   They have a fairly isolated larger parcel but there are other homes in 
the area.  They have spoken to their neighbors and have received no opposition to their request.   Under the current zoning 
they would not be able to have a larger storage building or the outdoor wood burner.     
 
Harry Gladwin, Town of Bradley Plan Commission, was present and said that the Town of Bradley Plan Commission & Town 
Board has approved the rezone request on unanimous votes and submitted a resolution to the Committee indicating their 
approval. 
 
Bowers said that staff was recommending approval.    Chairman Bailey closed the public hearing for the Schertz rezone 
request. 
 
M/S Rusch/Allen to APPROVE the Petition for Rezoning as proposed and forward to the June 17, 2014 County Board 
meeting.        Motion carried 6-0. 

 
 
 

 



Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST 
 

2) A request by John J. Schoone Construction and Walter Skic of SWS Enterprises LLC to operate an irrigation business as a 
contractor shop in a Planned Business zoning district. The property is described as Lot 2 of CSM #1752 Section 32,T31N-R7E, 
in the Town of Scott, with an address of N327 Brandenburg Avenue.  The tax parcel number is 24.323107.002.004.01.02  
and comprises approximately 2.5 acres. The request is being heard under section 17.3.08(6) of Lincoln County Ordinances 
 
Walter Skic was present to explain the request.  He has an irrigation business and is looking to purchase this parcel and 
move the business there.    They will store everything within the buildings.   He has 14 employees.   His only concern is the 
setback being required for the building from the “wetland” as he was planning on putting his building only 15’ from the 
wetland.   He discussed the run off from the buildings and how they would mitigate the issue.    He said that every foot of 
area they could use would be valuable.    Bowers questioned the size of the building and it would be changed to 50’x88’.   
The 2

nd
 building would be approximately the same size but closer to Brandenburg Av.    Bowers discussed the delineation of 

the wetland boundary.   Bowers clarified that most everything would be stored inside and Skic confirmed that there may 
only be a trailer outside.    Hetfeld questioned that the adjoining landowner has a retaining wall within the wetland.   Plant 
clarified with Skic that he would be satisfied with a compromise on the setback from the wetland and he said that he would. 

 
Chairman Bailey closed the public hearing for the John J. Schoone Construction/SWS Enterprises LLC Conditional Use 
request.    The Committee discussed the issues and Plant asked Bowers his thoughts on a compromise.   Baughan asked 
Bowers if the stone would help the filtration to the wetland.    Bowers discussed different options.   Baughan asked if gutter 
on the building would work but because it concentrates the flow that may cause more erosion.   Skic also said that they 
would be putting up silt fence to protect the wetland. 
 
M/S  Plant/Rusch to APPROVE ON CONDITION the Conditional Use request per recommendations as listed in the staff 
report with the change in setback to the wetland to 25’.     
Conditions:  
1. The regulations contained within 17.3.08 (6) shall be adhered to. 
2. All impervious surfaces must be setback a minimum of 35’ 25’ to the wetlands on the property  
 
Motion carried 6-0 
 
 

3) A request by American Asphalt to allow for a temporary asphalt plant from July 1 to September 1, 2014 at an existing gravel 
pit.  The property is located in the SE¼NE¼ of Section 07,T32N-R7E, in the Town of Merrill, with an address of W4510 
County Road R.  The tax parcel number is 14.073207.004.001.00.00  and comprises approximately 39 acres. The request is 
being heard under section 17.3.08 (10) of Lincoln County Ordinances 
 
Thomas Burch, of American Asphalt/Mathy Construction was present to explain their request.    The main purpose of the 
permit is for Lincoln County to reconstruct County Rd R.    They have 4 different portable asphalt plants they move around 
the state.   Their typical hours are 6 a.m. -7 p.m.,  Monday -Friday.   The County Rd R project would take about 3 weeks.    
Wessel said the staff was recommending 6 a.m-6 p.m.   Burch discussed the proposed location of the asphalt plant 
equipment and said that they had a couple of options.   
 
Bowers asked Burch about the environmental regulations & spill prevention plan and Burch explained it.   He explained a 
little bit about the process.    Burch said that all of their equipment & process meets the regulations.   Bowers asked if they 
were stockpiling currently.   Burch said that they were and that they would not go beyond the confines of the 40 acres. 
 
Chairman Bailey read the Town of Merrill approval into the record.     It was approved at the Town of Merrill 5/12/14 Board 
meeting on a 5-0 vote, with no conditions listed. 
 
Marion Perkins was present in opposition to the request.   Her home is directly across the road from the proposed 
temporary asphalt plant.   She had concerns about smoke or exhaust affecting her home, that the debris from the plant 
would contaminate the groundwater and just overall health hazards created by the plant.   She doesn’t believe the 
neighbors should be exposed to this.    She said that there may be financial implications to their property values also.  She 
questioned the time frame that the company was proposing.   Plant asked Perkins how long she had lived there and if there 



Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

had previously been an asphalt plant in the area.   Perkins said 51 years.   Plant asked if there was an asphalt plant there 
previously.  Perkins said that there had been for approximately 10 years and it had been run by the County. 
 
Mark Mehlos was present in opposition to the request.    He has a seasonal cabin rental business off of County R.    He just 
became aware of the issue 6 days ago.   He said that he spoke with Mike Matushak the Town of Merrill Chairman, and he 
said that there was no opposition at their Town meeting but none of the surrounding property owners were notified.     He 
tried to get information from the DNR on some issues but he is having trouble getting anyone to get back to him.   He is 
concerned about the wetland and the water table.   Most of his research was off the internet but he is concerned with the 
chemicals & toxins that will be emitted in the process of the asphalt plant operation.   He is interested in a constructive 
solution possibly using the Spring Lake gravel pit instead.    He encouraged the Committee to think about options.   He 
questioned that the staff report stating that there were not health or safety issues.   He noted a discrepancy in the 
timeframe & amount of material to be removed from this site.  Baughan questioned the concerns about the contamination 
issues.   She said that this asphalt company has a good reputation & are closely regulated by the DNR & the county.  She 
feels that the small window of time that this plant would be in operation is creating needless worry.     Infrastructure must 
be maintained and she doesn’t feel that the affect that something this temporary would cause harm.    She said that she 
trusts in the regulators to monitor situations.     Mehlos said that he didn’t feel he was worrying needlessly but he is 
frustrated that he cannot get answers from the regulators.    Plant asked if there were any ill effects for damage done by the 
previous “hot mix” plant that ran for 10 years in the same approximate area.    Plant agreed with Baughan that on a short 
term basis this request would not cause harm.    Mehlos agreed that there was no apparent impact from the previous plant 
but that it was located in a different spot. 
 
Baughan asked Burch about the “black smoke” emitted from the plant.   He said that there is no “black smoke” and 
explained that the process creates only air & steam after it goes through the “bag-house” process.   It is a clear steam 
emission that dissipates. 
 
Scott Streich was present in opposition.   He lives nearby & urges the Committee to deny the permit.   He has 2 young 
children and they grow all of their produce organically.  He is concerned about water and air contamination.     His well is 
only about 40’ deep.   He questioned that all of the neighbors were not notified and had concerns about the Town meeting.   
He has lived in his home for 15 years and would not like to have his property compromised.   Baughan asked which 
direction from the plant he would be.   He would be to the southwest of the plant.    There was discussion on the direction 
of the air & water flow would be.      Allen asked if the worry of the water contamination would be from the existing gravel 
pit or the asphalt plant.    He said both.   There was more discussion on the aquifer.   
 
John Schroedel was present and wanted to go on record as being in opposition to the request.   His wife has a breathing 
problem.   He said that there is evidence that there is contamination to the air & ground water.   His home is on a hill and 
his well is 152’ deep.    He questioned the permit that was originally issued for the gravel pit and how well the DNR 
monitors everything. 
 
Tony Geiger was present in opposition.    He is a retired Natural Resource Habitat Specialist.   He has spent 35 years 
improving wildlife habitat.   He feels that the site itself is a disaster. 
 
Jack Layman was present in opposition.    He has concerns about the air & water pollution.    He said that when there have 
been spills they have not been taken care of properly.   He does not approve of the request.    
 
James Meyer was present in opposition.    He lives on Knight Lake Rd and is basically here in support of his neighbors.    He 
is worried about unanswered questions that Mr. Mehlos has asked of the DNR.    Hetfeld did comment that the Committee 
had more specific information on the previous request in the Town of Schley.    Hetfeld asked if the County Rd R project was 
scheduled to start in July and Burch confirmed that it was supposed to.    There was discussion about the Town of Merrill 
approval & if it should go back to them.    Streich asked Burch which projects the asphalt plant would be used for.    Burch 
said the County R project and a couple of others during the timeframe allowed.     Burch explained to the Committee that 
County R project was going to take place this summer and that the material has to come from somewhere.  He said that it 
needs to be put into perspective the costs and impact that the project will have.     Bailey asked if the plant has onsite 
“monitors”.    Burch explained the process of the “bag-house” and the burner tune-ups.    He read from a recent EPA report 
and explained what their threshold limits and actual emissions were.    Burch said that they stay within the regulations and 
conditions put on a permit because they don’t want to ruin future business in an area.        
 



Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

 
Chairman Bailey closed the public hearing for the American Asphalt/Mathy Construction Conditional Use request.   Allen 
said that her concern was the notice that was given to residents in the area.    Bowers explained who we are required to 
notify of the public hearing and who was notified.   There was discussion on that subject, the Town of Merrill input and 
possibly sending it back to the Town of Merrill. 
 
M/S Baughan/Plant to APPROVE ON CONDITION the request per recommendations as listed in the staff report.     
Conditions: 
1. The asphalt plant may be located and operated on the property from July 1, 2014 to September 1, 2014. 

2. Hours of operation shall be restricted to between the hours of 6am and 6pm, Mon. – Fri. & 6am to 2pm on Saturdays. 
 
M/S Bailey/Baughan to amend original motion to add a 3

rd
 condition that American Asphalt provides site specific emissions 

reports & incident reports to the Land Services Department to be shared with the public.       Motion to amend the motion 
carried on a 6-0 vote. 
 
Hetfeld requested a roll call vote on the amended motion with the 3 conditions. 
Hetfeld – no, Plant – yes, Allen – no, Rusch – no, Baughan – yes, Bailey - yes 

        
Because the vote was a tie the motion failed on the roll call vote. 
 

At 4:00 p.m. the Committee agreed to take a break.   Meeting re-convened at 4:10 p.m. 
At the request of County Board Chair Lussow, the Committee agreed to move to #7 on the agenda 

 
6. Enforcing only zoning rules the State mandates – Lussow memo –    Bob Lussow, County Board Chair, was present and said that 

while he agrees that there need to be rules in place but common sense needs to prevail.     He wants to bring forward, with the 
permission of this Committee, a draft resolution to bring the regulations down to the absolute minimum state requirements as 
far as zoning, to the next Land Services Committee meeting to bring a resolution to County Board to relax the requirements.   
This will not be a fast process because it will involve rewriting/repealing or amending almost the entire code.     Bergstrom said 
taking this to County Board would be an advisory step whether to proceed or not and then if they wanted to proceed the 
ordinances would then need to be changed before different rules would be in place.    Bowers asked Lussow if he was speaking 
about all of the codes.     Lussow said whatever it takes to make it a more common sense regulations.    Lussow said that 
regulations have been made more restrictive since he has been on County Board and he doesn’t believe that is the intent of the 
law.    He said that there needs to be a logical solution. 
 
Committee moved to item #8 on the agenda. 
 

7. Discuss buffer restoration issue – Ronald Ruechel property on Deer Lake –     Mr. Ruechel’s property is actually on Bridge Lake 
not Deer Lake.     Ron Ruechel was present to explain that he built a garage in 1999 prior to building his home and when he built 
the garage the shoreland rules were not in effect but when he was ready to build his home the laws had changed.   He was 
required to restore his buffer and he wants to still be able to mow the grass & leave the trees.   He felt he was “held hostage” 
and made to sign the affidavit in order to get the permits for his home.     He wants to know why Lincoln County has these rules 
but Oneida County doesn’t need to adhere to the same rules.     Hetfeld asked for clarification on what we were requiring 
Ruechel to maintain as natural and on the differences in the county to county rules.    Wessel explained when the buffer 
restoration is required.    Ruechel said he feels that the rules are too strict and believes if he is held to this he may put his 
property up for sale.   He said that there are plenty of trees on his property and doesn’t believe that mowing is harming 
anything.   Wessel said that this agenda item isn’t requiring any action and is just a discussion.    This Committee does not have 
the authority to grant anything without amending the Shoreland Ordinance.    There was discussion on the impact of the 
affidavit following the property if it was sold.    Nancy Bergstrom clarified that the affidavit was signed to obtain permits and 
Ruechel agreed at the time to restore the buffer.    Ruechel said that he and Dan Miller agreed that what he was doing was 
sufficient at the time and now the rules have changed and Dan Miller is no longer in this department.      Bowers said that we 
have over 300 signed Buffer Affidavits recorded so far and this affidavit is pretty clearly stated as far as what was required.    
Hetfeld questioned that another option was given in a March 4

th
 letter and Bowers said that was because they were trying to 

reach a compromise on the issue. 
 
Baughan said that she is a strong believer that property owners should not be so restricted with what they can do on their 
property and it is unfortunate that the counties are enforcing rules differently. She said that after reading the state statute she 



Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

is confused as to why the requirements are in place.    She cited that most medical facilities in Wisconsin warn against the issues 
of disease due to ticks and she believes we should be more concerned with the health of humans.      Bill Zeitz was present and 
commented that he is concerned with the epidemic of tick related health issues and questions that we have a requirements in 
our ordinance that may put someone’s health in jeopardy.   He said that the Zoning regulations were supposed to be relaxed a 
couple of years ago and this has not happened.     He shared that at the Law Enforcement Committee meeting, it was discussed, 
that Zoning had requested police presence at an onsite.    He wondered if we were using police presence because of staff safety 
or to intimidate people to comply with the ordinance.    Bowers said he was sorry that Ruechel felt that he was visited by the 
“Gestapo” for not mowing his grass.     Bowers said due to the lengthy timeframe of this issue with no resolution, he was 
concerned.     Ruechel said that he is not the only landowner that is upset by these regulations.   He feels his property rights are 
being infringed upon with these rules.    Wessel said that she is new with the county but did see that there was at least 18 points 
of contact over the years without anything being resolved.    She said that if staff was concerned for their safety she agreed they 
may want to have a police presence.  
 
Plant said that this is not an issue about just mowing the grass but there is factor involved with protecting the waters of the 
state from runoff of contaminants and that is why there are regulations in place. 
 
Adam Senoraske was present as a property owner on Lake Nokomis that he also has issues with restoration.   He has two 
separate letters from zoning staff stating different requirements.    He also has issues with the restrictions on the 30’ strip that 
WVIC owns.   He said that he will be taking his issues to court.   Hetfeld said that he may not agree with all of the regulations but 
it is what is in place as law so he may have to fight it in court.     Bergstrom said that the rules that are in place need to be 
enforced.   Some may be more restrictive than the state mandates and if we want to enforce just what is mandated, the current 
ordinance needs to be changed.   She said that whenever you are doing enforcement of regulations you are going to make 
people unhappy.    Zeitz said that he wanted to remind her that when this ordinance was before the County Board, he and 
others were in opposition.    She explained the process and the length of time & hearings that were involved in amending this 
ordinance.     You are bound by state rules and cannot get around some regulation being in place for the shoreland properties.      
Ruechel asked for direction for the next step to take with his issue.    Bailey suggested that Ruechel get in touch with his 
legislators if he wants state rules changed.   There was lengthy discussion on the requirements for shoreland requirements in 
different counties. 
 
Ben Niffenegger, from Wisconsin Valley Improvement Company, was present.    He shared that there are currently several cases 
in the courts in Oneida County for shoreland compliance.   He explained how much of the Rice Reservoir (Lake Nokomis, Bridge 
& Deer Lakes) is owned by WVIC.  He explained that there is a License Agreement between WVIC and the adjacent landowners.    
He said that when the agreement is in effect, the adjacent landowner may use the WVIC land, as long as the landowner is in 
compliance with all of the regulations in place (Local, County, State & Federal).    Ruechel said that he currently does not have a 
License Agreement with WVIC and was advised by a lawyer to not submit it yet.    Niffenegger said that whatever is done on the 
land impacts the water quality.   Allen questioned the timeframe since the onset of this issue (2005) to present and wondered 
why it was such a length of time.   Bergstrom said that staff tries to work with people for a resolution before legal action.    
Ruechel said he believed that this was a done deal back when he was dealing with Dan Miller.   Senoraske questioned why Miller 
wasn’t present to defend his actions.    Wessel explained that Miller is no longer in this department but out at the Landfill. 
 
Supervisor Rusch asked to be excused to leave during the discussion on item #7 and was excused at approximately 5:10 p.m. 
Committee returned to item #6 on the agenda. 
 

8. Discuss outlay for different department vehicles – Wessel explained the need for newer vehicles for staff to use for field visits.    
There was discussion about the current vehicles and what the Department was hoping to obtain.     
 
M/S Bailey/Plant to proceed with the request.    Motion carried 4-1 with Allen voting nay.        
 

9. Approve 2015 preliminary Land Services budget –    Wessel explained that the budget is confusing as we are now combining 6 
budgets into 1 with the merging of the offices.    There was explanation/discussion on the changes/increases/decreases.      
 
M/S Allen/Baughan to discuss the preliminary budget on next month’s agenda before approving it.     Vote failed. 
 
M/S Hetfeld/Plant to approve the preliminary Land Services budget and forward to Finance.    Motion carried with Hetfeld, Plant 
& Bailey voting yay, Allen & Baughan voting nay. 
 



Lincoln County Land Services Committee 
June 12, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

10. Farmland Preservation Planning – Wessel explained that there is a meeting set up by DATCP for Lincoln County to meet with 
them on June 25, 2014, 1-2:30 p.m. at Marathon County Library if any of the Committee members wish to attend.      Wessel 
also spoke about an extension of an AG Enterprise area from Taylor or Marathon Counties that may be an option in the future. 
 

11. Agency Updates – Matt Peplinski was present, and because Peggy Winter, the NRCS representative, had to leave he gave some 
brief information on her behalf.   There is an NRCS workgroup meeting in Rhinelander on July 10, 2014 at the Forest Service 
building.    The NRCS is trying to minimize into more of a district type area.   Winter’s area will now be Lincoln County & more 
counties to the north.   Committee members are invited to air concerns.    

 
Matt Peplinski is the County Executive Director for the Farm Service Agency.    They are a sister agency under USDA to the NRCS 
and they are responsible for administration of the Farm Bill at the local level to producers.   He explained that there are 
statutory requirements to have common board members with the Land Services Committee.   Hans Breitenmoser is the current 
representative for our county.   He explained the function of their organization & the requirements and membership.    Peplinski 
shared that due to budget cuts he is now running 3 offices and their status.  
 
Hetfeld asked to be excused at 5:50 p.m. for another meeting. 
 

12. Department Report -    some of the department report was touched on with agenda item #10        
 
The Committee moved to item #15 on the agenda. 
 

13. Convene into CLOSED SESSION pursuant to sec. 19.85(1)(c), Stats., for considering employment, promotion, compensation or 
performance evaluation data of any public employee –  At 6:03 p.m. M/S Plant/Baughan to convene into closed session.  Randy 
Scholz & Bob Lussow to remain in the room with the Committee.    Roll call vote was all ayes. 

a. Land services Administrator Evaluation 
 

14. Reconvene into OPEN SESSION and take any action necessary on item(s) discussed in closed session –    M/S Plant/Baughan to 
reconvene into open session at 8:49 p.m.    Roll call vote was all ayes.       
 
M/S Baughan/Plant to give Diane Wessel a good review and a vote of confidence on the part of the Committee.   Motion carried 
4-0 
 
Committee moved to Item #19 on the agenda. 

 

REGISTER OF DEEDS 
 
15. Q&A on ROD Monthly Munis Report – Koss asked if there were any questions.   There were none. 
 
16. Q&A on ROD Monthly Written Report –   Baughan asked if there was a reason the revenues were down this year from last year 

and Koss explained that it seems to be a statewide trend maybe because of less home in foreclosure and less home sales.   
There was discussion on the fees and what they fund. 

 
17. Approve 2015 preliminary Register of Deeds budget –    Koss answered questions that the Committee had on the preliminary 

budget.   She explained the redaction process and what the funds were used for.   She explained that the money is gone after 
2014.      

 
M/S Allen/Baughan to approve the Preliminary Register of Deeds budget and forward to Finance.   Motion carried 4-0. 

 
18. Confirm schedule & next meeting/public hearing date – July 10, 2104 -   Date confirmed.   Time to be determined.  

 
Committee moved to item #13 on the agenda.   

 
19. Adjourn – M/S Baughan/Allen to adjourn at 8:52 p.m.       Motion carried all ayes. 

Minutes prepared by June Winters 


